M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 11, 2002
10: 52 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 95, Side
SFC 02 # 95, Side
SFC 02 # 96, Side
SFC 02 # 97, Side

>>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxi mately 10:52 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senator Loren Lenman

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATI VE DREW SCALZI; REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY
W LSON; REPRESENTATI VE JOE HAYES; REPRESENTATI VE GRETCHEN GUESS;
DOUG MECUM Director, D vision of Commercial Fisheries, Departnent
of Fish and Game; VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent O ficer, Division
of General Services, Departnment of Adm nistration; DOUG LETCH,
Staff to Senator Ben Stevens; CRYSTAL SM TH, Special Assistant,
Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral, Departnment of Law, DR LARRY
LABOLLE, Staff to Representative Richard Foster; JOHN HANDELAND,
Enpl oyee, fornmer Mayor, City of None

Attending via Teleconference: From Fairbanks: MARY WEYM LLER,
Licensed Practical Nurse and Menber, Board of Nursing; From
Anchorage: SALLY HUNTLEY, Omner, Frontier Travel; BILL BECK, Omner,
Airlines-Online Travel Agency

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 208- AQUATI C FARM5S FOR SHELLFI SH

SFC- 02 (1) 05/ 11/ 02



The Commttee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of Fish and
Gane, and a representative fromthe aquatic farmindustry. The bil
was reported from Comm ttee.

HB 276- REGULATI ON OF NURSI NG

The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor and the Board of Nursing, and
reported the bill from Conm ttee.

HB 300- PROCUREMENT OF TRAVEL SERVI CES

The Commttee heard from the bill’s sponsor, the D vision of
Procurenents, Departnent of Admnistration, and took public
testinmony fromrepresentatives of the travel industry. The bill was

held in Commttee, re-addressed, and reported from Conmm tt ee.
HB 382- CLEANUP OF | LLEGAL DRUG SI TES

The Commttee heard from the sponsor and reported the bill from
Commi ttee.

HB 393- SALES OF BUSI NESS OPPORTUNI TI ES

The Commttee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of Law, and
the bill reported from Conm ttee.

HB 239- VOCATI ONAL EDUCATI ON PI LOT PROGRAM

The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor and the Gty of None. The bil
reported from Conm ttee.

#hb208

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 208(RES)
"An Act relating to aquatic farmng of shellfish; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE DREW SCALZI infornmed the Commttee that the Aquatic
Farm Act, enacted by the State in 1988, was intended to streaniine
the process of devel oping aquatic farns; however, problens have
arisen regarding the Departnment of Natural Resource’s nmariculture

SFC- 02 (2) 05/ 11/ 02



revi ew process through which areas are sel ected for devel opnent. He
expl ained that protests from individuals not wishing to have a
mariculture operation near their property or fromuser groups such
as | odge owners, have furthered these probl ens. He expl ai ned that
this bill proposes to appropriate noney to the Departnent of Fish
and Gane to identify appropriate sites and then coordinate efforts
with the Departnment of Natural Resources to finalize site
selections. He stated that 90 sites are identified in this bill as
suitable for: suspended culture sites for oysters and nussels; on-
bottomlittle neck clans; and geoduck maricul ture.

Representati ve Scal zi asserted that some of the 90 identified areas
m ght incur “common-use” conflicts that would require an Al aska
Coastal Managenent Plan review. He inforned the Commttee that the
State of Connecticut has 50,000 acres of land simlarly under
| ease, whereas Al aska, with nore coastline, currently has 500 acres
under |ease. He continued that this bill would inprove the current
process by providing pre-selected sites, providing for public
hearings in accordance with the Alaska Coastal Mnagenent Pl an
Revi ew, and establishing the |and-|ease component. He specified
that the annual |ease fee would be $350 for the first acre and $100
per each additional acre, and that, depending on whether half or
all of the sites were |eased, the acconpanying $220, 000 fiscal note
could be recouped in ten years or five years, respectively. He
stressed that this legislation would establish the neans to
stinmulate new econom c devel opnment in coastal comunities, and
surm sed that though the process mght be slow, the potential is
i mense.

PAUL FUHS, Representative, Al aska Trademark Shellfish, voiced that
this legislation would assist an industry that could provide
benefits to the State. He noted that the Departnent’s |ack of
support for mariculture conbined wth citizen opposition, has
resulted in no sites being available for the aquatic industry, and
asserted that this legislation could provide the needed sites.

M . Fuhs pointed out that industry concerns regarding w | dstocks
are not addressed in this legislation. He shared with the Commttee
that the aquatic industry has proposed to tenporarily harvest and
then transplant w | dstocks; however, the Departnent has stated that
this “would be a violation of conmon property use.” He continued
t hat because of the wildstock issue, the industry is concerned that
the twenty sites pre-selected in this legislation for the shellfish
i ndustry “would have absolutely no animals on them” which is
i ndicative of “a bad habitat” for growi ng shellfish

M. Fuhs stated that the organization has worked wth the
Departnment and the bill’s sponsor to resolve the habitat concern.

SFC- 02 (3) 05/ 11/ 02



However, he stated a “Catch 22" exists in establishing a common
property habitat policy because the Al aska Court System has
declared that it could not nmake a ruling on conmon property because
the Legi slature has not established a policy, and the Legislature
states that it could not address the situation because the Court
has not issued a ruling. He asserted that this issue nust be
resolved to allow the industry to nove forward.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the testifier whether he supports the bill

M . Fuhs relayed that the organi zation holds a neutral position on
the bill. He commented that while the bill provides benefits to the
suspended culture and little neck clans industries; it offers no
benefits to the geoduck farm ng industry.

Senat or Austerman expressed support for the bill as it does contain
nerits.
M . Fuhs concurred; however, he declared that the bill should not

be necessary, and that it is unfortunate that the Departnent is not
actively granting permts.

Representative Scal zi agreed that there are issues involving the
exi sting geoduck industry applicants; however, he assured that the
Departnent is commtted to providing | eases and i s addressing the
issue “by offering sites where there are no standing stocks and
that would certainly take care of the problemof common property.”
He furthered, “Wth issue of any standing stocks, their intent is
to have an open access fishery, renpove those stocks, and then have
that site suitable for farmng.” He stated that the bill does
attenpt to address the testifier’'s concern regarding existing
geoduck applicants.

Senat or Austerman stated that the concerns of the geoduck industry
shoul d be addressed; however, he stressed that this |egislation
shoul d not be delayed as it encourages econoni c devel opnent in the
State.

Senat or Austernman remarked that he and two other Conmttee nmenbers
traveled to Chile to witness that country' s aquatic farmng
operations, and he attested that the government of Chile
aggressively supports the process. He stressed that this
l egislation is an attenpt to get the State “noving in an aggressive
manner” to stinulate econonm ¢ devel opnent.

Senat or Green asked whether issues raised in a letter addressed to

Senators and Representatives from Gary Zaugg, dated March 13, 2002
[copy on file] are simlar to those raised by M. Fuhs.

SFC- 02 (4) 05/ 11/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly confirmed the concerns are the sane.

Senator Ward asked M. Fuhs how the concerns of the geoduck
i ndustry coul d be addressed.

M. Fuhs clarified that except for the commobn property issue, the
Departnent of Fish and Gane has addressed ot her nmanagenent concerns
rai sed by the industry. He explained that the industry has proposed
a plan to conduct an annual geoduck harvest involving no nore that
20 percent of the existing resources and, as part of that plan, the
Wi | dstocks harvested would be required to be successfully
transpl anted. He continued that the harvested resource nust be
conpl etely replaced before the next 20 percent could be harvested,
and he attested, this plan contains the necessary safeguards to
expand the industry.

Senat or Ward asked why this |language is not included in the bill

Representative Scalzi responded that efforts were nmde to
i ncorporate the industry’ s suggestions; however it was not included
due to resistance from the Departnment of Fish and Gane and the
Departnent of Law regardi ng conmon property uses.

Senator Ward opined that the Departnent of Law and the sponsor
“have opted to let the Court” Systemrather than the Legislature
determ ne what should be included in the bill

Representati ve Scal zi responded that the omtted | anguage pertains
“to an existing applicant, this is not sonething that is out there
for anybody, this is specific to one or two parties so for those
reasons, it is not. | believe the Departnent of Law says, [it is]
specific to an individual; therefore, it is not constitutional
wher e everybody has the sane equal access to this proposal. M take
on it, Senator, is that if we changed our law, which | would
support to make it nore like what we do with tinber, you have a
selected site of geoducks or little necks and you offer to have
that for lease. | think that that would be consistent with what we
do for tinber; however, aquaculture and mariculture does not apply
with our Constitution. Qur Constitution does not apply the sane
standards to those species, so there would need [to be] a change
according to the Departnent of Law.”

Co- Chair Donley asked which fiscal notes are applicable to the
House Resources conmmttee substitute.

Senator Wl ken identified the four corresponding fiscal notes by
Depart nent .

SFC- 02 (5) 05/ 11/ 02



AT EASE 11: 07 AM/11:12 AM

Senator W1l ken continued to clarify the fiscal notes by Departnent
and date.

AT EASE 11:15 AM/11:16 AM

Co- Chair Donl ey asked whet her departnents coul d absorb the expenses
wi thin their existing annual budgets.

Representati ve Scal zi responded that sone of the expenses are being
covered through existing budgets, and he exanpled that the
Department of Environnmental Conservation currently performs work
that this bill would require, and therefore, it is included in the
exi sting budgets.

DOUG MECUM Director, Division of Commercial Fisheries, Departnent
of Fish and Gane stated that the Departnent of Natural Resources is
primarily involved in this bill; however, the Departnment of Fish
and Ganme would incur additional expenses resulting from the
projected intensive public process and the resource inventory
process this bill would require.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked whet her funds were allotted when the origina
program was adopt ed.

M. Mecum replied that the program was adopted nore than twelve
years ago, and since that tinme, the Departnent’s budget has been
reduced 30 percent. He surmsed that there is “little likelihood”
t hat additional nonies were funded when the program was adopt ed.

Co-Chair Donley identified that the Division of Comercial
Fi sheries fiscal note contains funds to enploy scuba divers as well
as a seasonal biologist to assess potential sites.

M. Mecum stated that, although the original fiscal request was
hi gher; the Departnent collaborated with the Shellfish Gowers
Association to have the Association absorb sone of the workl oad,
whi ch allowed the request to be lowered to this level. He specified
that $50,000 would be required to: conduct the dive surveys to
identify whether soil at the sites are biologically suitable; to
identify the types of standing stocks the areas support as well as
the existing uses of an area in order to not conflict with existing
aquatic life and |l and; and other traditional uses of the site.

Co-Chair Donley asked for assurance that the project would be
conpleted if funding were allotted.

SFC- 02 (6) 05/ 11/ 02



M. Mecum answered that the Departnent’s obligations would be net.

Representative Scal zi stated that the fiscal note includes |ease
revenue, but does not include the contributions to the general fund
resulting fromeither the State Business Tax or the Raw Fi sh Tax.

Representative Scal zi stressed that by dedicating this funding the
Departnents woul d be obligated to conduct the required work.

Senator Wl ken offered a notion to “report Commttee Substitute for
House Bill 208 (Resources) Version ‘P from Commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and fiscal notes as set forth” in
earlier discussion.

There being no objections, CS HB 208(RES) was REPORTED from
Committee with a new zero fiscal note dated February 28, 2002 from
t he Departnent of Environnmental Conservation; a $98,300 fiscal note
dated March 12, 2002 from the Departnent of Natural Resources; a
$50, 000 fiscal note dated April 21, 2002 from Division of
Comrerci al Fisheries, Departnent of Fish and Gane; and a previous
$72,500 fiscal note dated March 5, 2002 from the Division of
Habitat and Restoration, Departnent of Fish and Gane.

#hb276

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 276(L&C)

"An Act relating to tenporary permts and |icenses by
endor senment issued by the Board of Nursing; and relating to
t he del egation of nursing duties."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.
REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, the sponsor of the bill, infornmed the

Commttee that this legislation wuld update State statutes to
align with current nursing practices by: allowng nurses to
del egate nursing duties to other personnel; increasing the
tenmporary licensing application tinme period fromfour nonths to six
nonths to allow sufficient tinme for the required crimnal
background check; and provide for changes in statute |anguage to
conply with current D vision of Occupational Licensing practices.

Senator Green inforned the Commttee that sone enployers discuss
with prospective nursing applicants the expectation that the nurses

SFC- 02 (7) 05/ 11/ 02



woul d delegate certain responsibilities to Certified Nursing
Assistants (CNAs). She noted that “great pressure” has been exerted
on nurses to delegate duties even when the nurses are not
confortable in doing so. She asked Representative W] son whet her
this bill would supplant a Registered Nurse’s (RN) ability to
deci de whether or not to delegate certain duties.

Representative WIson responded that the |anguage in this bill
“definitely does not” undermine an RN s ability to make those
decisions. She explained that there are strict rules and
regul ations for nurses, and nurses are very careful not to del egate
a duty to an unqualified individual as this could jeopardize the
nurse’'s |icense.

Co-Chair Donley voiced concern that current State statutes are
vague regardi ng nmedi cal staffing in the State’s nedical facilities,
and he noted that other states “have nore specific and clear
statutes regarding the proper anount” of nedical personnel,
especially nurses. He asserted that hospital staffing |Ievel
requirenents in the State are “dangerously |ow,” and he questi oned
whether this legislation would result in a further “strain on
nurses” who, he asserted are being asked to assune a w der range of
responsibilities. He furthered that nurses are constantly being
asked to update their skills and increase their know edge about
new y i ntroduced nedi cati ons.

Co-Chair Donley stressed that the increasing conplexities of the
nursing profession intensify his concern regarding del egati on of
duties. He stated that the Commttee should be cognizant “of any
endangernment to the levels of service” provided to patients because
of the delegation of nurses’ duties “as the staffing is already
under a lot of strain because of those cross-training things that
are being forced on nurses now.”

Senator O son advised that this |egislation does not propose to
del egate conplicated nedicating duties or other high-skil
responsibilities to wunlicensed staffers, but rather allows
qualified personnel to delegate sone “lesser duties that tie up
personnel” to subordinates. He stated that this would all ow a nurse
to determine what, if any, responsibilities could be del egated
which would allow the nurse to address nore critical needs. He
exanpled that this legislation would provide a nurse in a clinic
the authority to del egate such “lesser duties” as nonitoring bl ood
pressure rates to a subordinate in order for the nurse to nore
t hor oughly concentrate on soneone in critical condition who needs
to be adnmitted to a hospital.

Co-Chair Donley contented that, in addition to the pressure placed

SFC- 02 (8) 05/ 11/ 02



upon a nurse to del egate duties when concentrating on a critical
patient, there are circunstances where a nurse mght be under
“tremendous pressure fromthe hospital,” specifically a for-profit
facility, “to delegate nore and nore of their duties.” He stated
that he has wi tnessed situations where “nurses are being asked to
do things that they don't really feel is in the best interest of
patients, and yet the economc pressure is on them” He stressed
that nurses could be placed in a “tough situation” and ultimately
the license of the nurse, not the facility, is at stake.

Representative WIson explained that during a recent review of
nursing statutes and regul ati ons, nurses found that several |ong-
est abl i shed practices, including the del egation of certain nursing
responsibilities, are not defined in current statute. She stated
that this legislation was pronpted by the Departnment of Law s
suggestion that del egation authority should be addressed in State
statute. She stressed that the Board of Nursing would define the
paranmeters regardi ng which duties could be del egat ed.

Co- Chair Donley asked whether individuals who draw blood are
required to be licensed, for it appears that delegation of this
duty has becone an established practice.

Representative WIson voiced that she does not support the
del egation of this responsibility; however, a hospital m ght
establish this practice. She stated that the person who is
adm nistering the procedure should have practical experience to
know what they are doing. She asserted that the majority of nurses
woul d not del egate this responsibility.

Senator O son, [a nedical doctor] stated that his experience has
been primarily in clinics rather than for-profit hospitals, and
that there is a msconception that the “higher |icensed” person
should perform a procedure such as drawi ng blood; however, he
contended that, even though he has a “higher” |evel of training,
nost nurses “and even nurses aides” are nore highly skilled in that
procedure than he is. He stressed that there should be “a bal ance
to make sure that you have the nost skilled person” performng the
procedure. He continued that sone procedures do not require a
licensed individual and wth today's staffing situations,
“sonetimes it is not practical.”

Co-Chair Donley clarified that his concern involves “del egating
down” rather than to another as equal or higher qualified

individual. He asked whether this legislation wuld allow a
hospital adm nistration to exert pressure on nurses to del egate
duties, “such as the drawing of blood and other invasive

procedures,” to | ower |evel personnel.

SFC- 02 (9) 05/ 11/ 02



Representati ve Wl son responded that this bill would not change any
practice that is currently established, but rather would
i ncorporate established practices into State statute. She stated
that this incorporation and clear identification of which
est abl i shed practices nurses coul d del egate woul d serve to protect
nur ses.

Senator O son asked whether Bush Al aska's health aides would be
affected by this |egislation.

Representative WIlson reiterated that this |egislation wuld not
i ncur any changes to established practices.

Senator O son clarified that health aide’s positions would not be
af f ect ed.

Representative WI son concurred.

Senat or O son, addressing Co-Chair Donley’ s concerns regardi ng who
adm ni sters invasive procedures, stated that oftentines in rura
Al aska, soneone gets injured, and unlicensed, but trained, nedica
staffers mght have to adm nister invasive procedures “as the first
line of health care.”

Co-Chair Donley stated that statute exenptions address rural health
care situations, and stressed that his primary concern pertains to
| arge, for-profit nedical facilities that m ght exert “incredible
pressures” on health care professionals in order to reduce the cost
of care. He stated that this legislation mght give those entities
nore opportunity to exert pressure on the nursing staff to del egate
duties to staff who m ght not properly trained in a procedure.

Co- Chair Donl ey explained that current statute requires a m ni num
of one person on duty who is specifically trained for the
procedures adm nistered in the departnent; and that other nurses
assigned to that departnment would report to the trained individual.
He furthered that if the trained individual beconmes unavail able
during a shift, that person is required to delegate duties to other
untrained individuals. He stated that it is unfair to nurses to
have this onus placed on them especially if they do not agree with
the hospital directives. He stated that a bal ance nust be reached
wher eby nurses could not be forced to delegate a duty “that they do
not necessarily agree with.”

Representati ve Wl son stated that nurses could refuse to del egate a

responsibility, and if a doctor overrules the nurse’s decision not
del egate a duty that she deens unsafe or ill advised, the nurse

SFC- 02 (10) 05/ 11/ 02



could “wite the doctor up.” She exanpled that duties such as
wat ching a wound for redness could be del egated provided that the
person has received proper training. She reiterated that State
statutes woul d specify what could or could not be del egated “which
offers protection to the nurse and to the patient.”

Co- Chair Donl ey asked for exanples of what regul ations are being
considered by the Board of Nursing, as he considers the bill’s
| anguage “wi de open as far as del egation of authority.”

Representative WIson stated that current nursing regulations
specify that the Board would define unprofessional conduct to
i nclude: *“know ngly delegating a nursing care function, task, or
responsibility to another who is not |icensed” when that del egation
is contrary to that specified in State statute, “or involves a
substantial risk or harm to a client, and failing to exercise
adequat e supervision over other persons who are authorized to
practice only under the supervision of a |licensed personnel.” She
expressed that these regulations clearly define what could legally
be del egated; however, the correspondi ng | anguage is not currently
included in State statute.

Representative WIson explained that the Departnent of Law is
requesting that the | anguage be placed in State statute to enable
the statute to conformto existing regulations. She summari zed t hat
the nursing profession is “strongly and heavily regulated,” and
that this legislation would match State statute to current
regul ati ons, would not change what is currently conmon practice,
and woul d continue to hold nurses to |levels of “high conduct.”

Co- Chair Donley stressed that his concern lies nore with “the for-
profit notive in health care” which exerts pressure on nurses, and
that protecting nurses from that pressure is inportant. He
continued that another concern is when duties are delegated it is
the nurse’s license rather than a hospital or clinic’'s |license that
is at risk. He asked whether “better insulations” could be provided
to address this concern.

SFC 02 # 95, Side B 11:45 AM

Senator Green rem nded the Conmttee that these concerns have been
addressed before; however, it was State agencies rather than for-
profit or non-profit entities that were requiring nurses to
del egate duties inproperly.

Senator Green furthered that there have been situations in which

SFC- 02 (11) 05/ 11/ 02



enpl oynent was contingent on an applicant’s agreeing to del egate
authority to CNAs. She stated that hearings were conducted to
affirmthat this practice would not be allowed. She stressed the
concern that this legislation mght inadvertently underm ne the
ability of a nurse to refuse to delegate a duty they were
instructed to delegate, and then not receive “the backup” they
m ght require.

Co- Chair Donl ey echoed Senator G een’ concerns, and reiterated that
it is unfair for a supervisor’'s directives to place a nurse’s
| icense in jeopardy.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked whether current State regul ations hol d upper
managenent accountable for exerting pressures on nurses that m ght
result in endangering the nurses’ |icense.

Representati ve WI son responded that doctors know what procedures a
nurse could or could not perform in addition to what duties could
or could not be delegated. She told of a hearing process in the
event a doctor exerts pressure on a nurse to performor delegate a
duty that m ght place the nurse’s license in jeopardy or be unsafe
for a patient. She stressed that the procedures are “very clear and
known.”

Co-Chair Donl ey asked whether there is a “nmedical whistle blower
statute.”

Senator O son interjected that the normal procedure for reporting
undue pressure placed on a subordinate, involves the enployee
filing an incident report with a supervisor or a conmttee for
review He continued that if the report is determned to have
nmerit, a letter of reprinmand could be issued.

MARY WEYM LLER, Licensed Practical Nurse and Menber, Board of
Nursing, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks and read a
letter fromLynne Hart, a Nurse Practitioner and a nenber of the
Board of Nursing [copy not provided] which spoke in support of this
| egi slation, specifically as it addresses the established practice
of nurses “delegating, or transferring their legal authority to
performa specific nursing act to unlicensed assistants.” She read:
that it “recently canme to light” that the del egation practice is
not included in State statute as had incorrectly been assuned, and
that this om ssion has affected the Board of Nursing’s ability to
nodi fy regul ati ons regardi ng safe del egati on practices. The letter,
she continued, states that this legislation would correct both the
statute and the regul ation issues; would not create new health care
wor ker positions as staffers are already in place, and “would
elimnate a gray area for nurses who currently are already

SFC- 02 (12) 05/ 11/ 02



del egating to assistants as part of their job on a daily basis.”
She read that M. Hart urges the Committee to support this
| egi sl ati on.

Ms. Weymi |l er commented that current practice is that non-licensed
i ndi vidual s are asked to assune additional duties after receiving
training in those procedures; however, she stressed, the practice
must be included in State statute to protect both the nurse and the
patient. She qualified that patient care could only be del egated
when a patient’s condition is chronic and stable, and the non-
licensed staffer and the patient both agree to have the task
del egat ed. She noted that nunerous saf eguards and gui del i nes exi st
to protect the licensed nurse, the person to whomthe duties are
bei ng del egated, and the patient. She “strongly urged the Conmttee
to pass this bill.”

Senator Wl ken offered a notion to “report Commttee Substitute for
House Bill 276 from Conmittee with individual recommendati ons and
attached fiscal note.”

Co- Chair Donl ey objected and expressed the hope that individuals in
the nursing profession are aware of the content of this bill and
support its intent. He furthered that were this legislation to be
enacted, its regulations should be quickly established and shoul d
i nclude safeguards to protect nurses from undue pressure to
del egate duties as well as including |anguage that specifies that
managenent shoul d be penalized for any directives that mght result
in a nurse’s license being placed in jeopardy.

Co- Chair Donley w thdrew his objection.

Senat or O son asked whether, during this process, any abuse of
power incidents have been reported.

Representative Wl son stressed she has had “not one single letter
or phone call fromanyone” in opposition to this |legislation or any
reports of undue pressure to del egate duties.

Co-Chair Donley reiterated that during his conversations wth
nurses, he has heard “horror stories” about the pressures exerted
on nurses to delegate authority. He noted that the | ack of abuse of
power reports is not surprising as it is sonetimes difficult to
record the specifics of an incident.

Senator O son affirmed that nurses sonetines receive “threats of
retaliation” which could be a “real significant factor.”

There being no further objections, SCS CS HB 276 (L&) was REPORTED

SFC- 02 (13) 05/ 11/ 02



fromCommttee with a previous zero fiscal note, dated February 15,
2002 from the Departnent of Comunity and Econom c Devel opnent.

#hb300

SENATE CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 300( STA)
"An Act relating to the procurenment of certain travel
services."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE JCE HAYES, the bill’s sponsor, stated that this bil
woul d allow the State to exenpt certain types of travel services,
i ncluding airplane travel, hotel accomvodations, and travel agency
services, fromthe State procurenent code. He explai ned that Al aska
Airlines and other major airline conpanies have travel agency
comm ssions from five percent of the total ticket price to ten
dollars for a one-way ticket and $20 for a round-trip ticket, and
that in March of 2002, airline conpanies notified travel agents
t hat conm ssions woul d be conpl etely phased out. He stated that to
offset the loss of the airline conm ssion revenues, travel agencies
have i npl enment ed agency service fees.

Representative Hayes furthered that by exenpting specified travel
services fromthe procurenent regulations; the State could foster a
conpetitive travel service environnment by allow ng “admnistrative
agencies to choose travel providers on a case-by-case basis.” He
stressed that this conpetition is inportant to the State because it
woul d assure the State of the best possible service fee rate and
prevent a travel service nonopoly fromoccurring in the State.

Representative Hayes noted that travel agencies have received a
letter, dated April 5, 2002 fromthe Departnent of Adm nistration
Comm ssioner Jim Duncan [copy on file] that explains the
Departnent’s support of this |egislation.

SALLY HUNTLEY, Owner, Frontier Travel, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage, and informed the Conmttee that her agency has been
providing travel services to various State agencies since 1982, and
that she supports the fact that State agencies would be permtted
to choose which travel services they wish to use, on a Statew de
basis. She stated that this legislation would “level the playing
field” whereby all agencies could conpete for the State’s business
and that due to the conpetitive nature of the industry, service

SFC- 02 (14) 05/ 11/ 02



fees would remai n reasonably priced.

Ms. Huntley asserted that once fair fee rates are established, the
State could choose travel agencies based on quality of service. She
noted that a Request for Proposals (RFP) has been issued by the
State; however, the industry considers it confusing because the
details are not specific. She opined that the RFP's line item
format “is a reconciliation nightmare.” She stressed that a
conpetitive atnosphere woul d be nore beneficial to the State than a
“sol e source provider.”

Senator O son asked the testifier how nmany travel agencies are
Al askan- owned.

Ms. Huntley replied that sone of the |arger agencies are owned by
out-of-State entities; however, A askans own the majority of travel
agenci es.

Senator W1l ken asked the testifier the anmount her agency charges
for issuing airline tickets for State enpl oyee travel

Ms. Huntl ey responded that her agency provides this service free-
of - char ge.

Senator Wl ken rem nded the Commttee that the original version of
this bill included | anguage that prohibited awardi ng sol e-provider
contracts; however, that |anguage is not included in this commttee
substitute. He surmsed from Ms. Huntley' s testinony that she
preferred the original bill’s |anguage.

Ms. Huntl ey stated she does not support |anguage allow ng for sol e-
source contracting; however, she noted that were the bill not
adopt ed, agencies would be required to submt conpetitive fee bids
to the State, and a contract woul d be awarded.

Senator O son asked for further clarification as to the i ntent of
the bill.

Representative Hayes clarified that the original bill contained
i ntent | anguage; however, the intent |anguage was omtted in the
Senate State Affairs Commttee conmttee substitute. He stated that
the Procurenent Section, Division of General Services, Departnent
of Adm nistration Departnent, “understands the intent” of the bill;
however, if desired, that |anguage coul d be reinstated.

Senat or Lenman voi ced support for the Senate State Affairs commttee

substitute |anguage, as sonetines “too nuch intent |anguage” is
included in a bill. Although it is sometinmes necessary, he stated

SFC- 02 (15) 05/ 11/ 02



that in this case, the intent has been “clearly established” in the
Legi sl ative record.

Senat or Green asserted that Section 1 of the current |egislation
identifies that these services would not be required to go through
the conpetitive bid process.

Representati ve Davies agreed with Senator G een’s comment.

BILL BECK, Omer, Airlines-Online Travel Agency, testified via
t el econference from Anchorage and noted that he attended the RFP
travel managenent servi ces workshop hel d before the introduction of
this legislation. He stated that the State has established two
options for travel services: one being this bill and the other
bei ng a sol e-source RFP. He continued that the acconpanying fiscal
note indicates that in the event this bill is not adopted, the RFP
would require a travel agency to submt a bid in each of the
seventeen identified | ocal areas where its offices are |ocated, and
in addition, each invoice nust specify individual |ine item
descriptions and the corresponding fee for each transaction such as
tickets, hotel roons, and car rental reservations. He stated that
this line itemrequirenment woul d demand additional reconciliation
time of State enployees, and he opined that it would be nore
economcal for the State to develop a sinple fee structure that
agenci es could either agree or not agree to honor. He stated that
this approach would allow for continuing conpetition between travel
agenci es.

Senator WI ken asked the testifier the anount of the surcharge his
conpany pl aces on non-State enpl oyee travel.

M. Beck responded that fees are based on the conplexity of the
travel arrangenents; however, typical fees range between $20 and
$35.

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenment Oficer, Division of GCeneral
Servi ces, Departnent of Adm nistration, stated that historically,
the State has not been required to pay service fees as trave
agents were conpensated for their services by airlines, hotels, and
car rental conpanies; however, recent declines or/and elimnation
of these conm ssions fees has placed hardships on travel agents,
and that consuners including the State nust absorb these expenses.

M. Jones explained that because there are no fee-free trave
services in communities such as Juneau, Petersburg, Wangell,
Hai nes and Cordova, the State has awarded, in conpliance with the
State’s conpetitive procurenent code, a contract for travel
services in each of these |ocations. He stated that this bill does

SFC- 02 (16) 05/ 11/ 02



not prevent the State from procuring travel service contracts

however, the intent of the bill is to establish benchmark rate
structures for services that would allow State enpl oyees to use any
travel agency that provides its services at or below those
benchmark rates. He stated that were this bill adopted, this
process would begin, and a |ist of travel agencies who conply with
the State’s benchnmark rates would be supplied to State enpl oyees.
He clarified that existing State contracts woul d conti nue through
their specified tinme conmtnent.

M. Jones confirmed that this bill would incur expenses as
identified in the fiscal note. He explained the fee conponents of
the fiscal note, and stated that when Al aska Airlines term nates
its comm ssions to travel agencies, the State would be required to
pay average fees of $20 to $23 per ticket. He noted that the State
of Washington recently transitioned to a non-conpetitive fee
structure that has resulted in fees ranging from $15 to $45 per
ticket. He stressed that the State of Washington is paying nore
than the anount projected using the proposed procurenent process
stipulated in this legislation. He estimated that the annual
service fee cost to the State, based on the annual volune of ticket
that State enployees use, would be $500, 000 per year.

M. Jones stated that if this bill fails to be adopted, the State
woul d continue with the procurenent process, which he stressed,
would not result in a single sole-source Statew de contract, as
contracts are awarded on a per-|location basis.

Senat or Ward asked whether the State would be allowed to solicit a
proposal fromthe Al aska Airlines M| eage Programto accunul ate al
State enpl oyee travel mleage credits in a single State account to
assist in reducing State travel costs.

M. Jones responded that there is no legal restriction that would
prohibit the State from making this request.

Senat or Ward asked the testifier to investigate this option.

M. Jones agreed.

Senat or Austerman asked for further information about the service
contracts awarded in such locations as Juneau, Petersburg and
W angel | .

M. Jones gave as an exanple, the contract awarded to US Trave
Agency in Juneau that specifies the service fee for a ticket from

Juneau to Anchorage is five dollars and an eight dollar service fee
for tickets to other destinations; however, he rem nded the

SFC- 02 (17) 05/ 11/ 02



Commttee that this fee is paid in addition to the conm ssion the
agency currently receives fromAl aska Airlines. He continued that
when Al aska Airlines ceases to pay conmssions, the fees would
probably increase to approxi mately $23.

Senat or Austerman asked whether the State has investigated
transitioning to electronic ticketing as a neans of |owering
service fees.

M. Jones stated that currently the State purchases approxi mately
11, 000 out of 50,000 tickets directly froman airline via Internet
access. He stated that purchasing a ticket electronically exenpts
it frombeing subject to any procurenent code or service fee, and
that this would remain an option if this bill were adopted.

Senat or Aust erman asked whet her the Departnent encourages enpl oyees
to use electronic ticketing.

M. Jones responded that the Departnent does not anticipate
pressuring enpl oyees to nake travel arrangenents via the Internet,
as this could require a “high-paid state enpl oyee” to spend tine
online researching travel options. He stated that paying a travel
professional for this service is often a better decision; however,
he asserted that enpl oyees woul d not be prohibited fromthis course
of action.

Senator W/ ken asked the reason for an indetermnate fiscal note to
acconpany this bill, and he noted how unusual it is for a fiscal
note to specify that departnent agencies would absorb expenses.

Senator W1 ken voi ced concern that a total service fee of $350, 000
has been cal cul at ed based on a projected mninmal service fee of $12
per ticket; however, he stressed, the actual fee anount could incur
expenses as high as $750,000. He stressed that the fiscal note does
not appear to realistically present the possible costs, and he
asked whether a statewide limt could be considered in order to
nore accurately project the expense.

M. Jones stated that if this bill fails to be adopted, procurenent
procedures woul d be inplenented and the | owest travel service bid
per | ocation would be awarded a contract. He noted that if the bil
wer e adopted, “a cap” m ght be negotiated. He continued that when
Alaska Airlines discontinues its commssion fees, the average
service fee <charged for State enployee travel would be
approxi mately $23 per ticket, which he reiterated is ten to fifteen
dollars lower than fees being paid in the State of Washington
where a conpetitive procurenent procedure was not i nplenented.

SFC- 02 (18) 05/ 11/ 02



Senat or Austernman asked whether the US Travel service fee procured
for Juneau woul d be honored by the US Travel agency in Kodi ak.

M. Jones stated that agencies are not obligated to offer the
| ocation-specific rates throughout their service areas, and he
noted that travel agencies, including US Travel, are not currently
charging service fees in Anchorage. He infornmed the Conmttee that
current Departnent policy mandates that State enpl oyees nust use an
agency that does not charge a service fee, and in communities where
fees are charged, the Departnent would award a contract to a
speci fic agency through the conpetitive bid process.

Senator Austerman stated that he recently paid a $25 service fee in
Kodi ak.

M. Jones surmi sed that there nmust be a travel agency in the City
of Kodi ak that does not charge a service fee, as a contract has not
been negoti ated for Kodiak, and he reiterated that State enpl oyees
shoul d use that agency when making travel arrangenents.

Senator Ward asked the Departnent to provide the Commttee with the
total dollar anount the State has paid to Alaska Airlines for State
travel in order to further a consolidated State mleage plan
proposal with the airline.

M. Jones expressed that approximately $11 million has been spent
on travel with Al aska Airlines.

Senator Ward calculated that this would equal approximately 15
mllion mleage credits. He reiterated his request for the
Departnent to investigate whether negotiating wwth A aska Airlines
to establish a m | eage agreenent “would be |egal.”

Co-Chair Kelly asked M. Jones to provide the requested infornation
to Senator \Vard.

Senator Wl ken reiterated his concern that the fiscal note does not
speci fy whether travel fees would anount to $228,000 or $1 m i on.

Representati ve Hayes responded that this bill proposes to establish
specific service fees, and that State enployees could use any
travel agency agreeing to provide their services at the determ ned
| evel s. He stated that this bill would allow all travel agencies an
opportunity to conpete for State travel business, and he asserted
that it would be “dangerous” to have only one agency handle all the
St at e busi ness.

Senat or O son asked why notor vehicle rentals are excluded from

SFC- 02 (19) 05/ 11/ 02



this | egislation.

Representati ve Hayes responded that the State has “al ready secured
contract agreenents” for notor vehicle rentals.

Senator Wl ken clarified that if this bill fails to be adopted,
procurenments would be solicited, and contracts would be awarded to
a single travel agency in each of the seventeen identified regions
in the State, as determ ned by best value and fees.

Senator W/l ken continued that if the bill is adopted, the State
woul d establish fee structures by location, and State enployees
coul d use any travel agency agreeing to honor those fees.

[ Di scussion ensued to clarify the various processes based on
whet her or not the bill was adopted.]

Senator W/ ken asked whether a travel agency could choose to
provide travel services at |lower rates than those established by
the State.

M. Jones responded that enpl oyees would not be obligated to use an
agency offering services at l|less than the negotiated rates;
however, a listing of any agencies offering |ower fees would be
di stributed, and enpl oyees coul d deci de which agency to use.

Senator W/ ken asked what would occur if a State enpl oyee used an
unappr oved agency.

M. Jones responded that if the bill fails to be adopted, State
enpl oyees would not have an option, as only one agency in each
comunity would have the ability to wite State travel tickets.

Senat or Hof f man asked how travel arrangenments are handled in renote
areas of the State where no contracts exist.

M. Jones stated that the intent of bill is to establish rates for
services in areas “that have nore than negligible anmunts” of
travel traffic. He stated that if the bill fails to be adopted, the
Department intends to establish contracts in all |ocations.

Senat or Hof fman asserted that, currently, there are no contracts in
renote areas.

M. Jones clarified that contracts are not being established in
comunities where agencies are providing fee-free services. He
reiterated that if one or nore travel agencies in a community
provi des fee-free services, State enployees are required to use

SFC- 02 (20) 05/ 11/ 02



t hose agencies. He continued that in conmunities where no fee-free
agencies exist, the State would award a contract to one agency
t hrough the procurenent process.

Senat or Hof f man responded that the lone travel agency in the Cty
of Bethel has informed himthat, “the State is unwilling to pay
those fees in Bethel.”

Co-Chair Kelly announced that due to the anmount of questions
concerning this bill; he would be holding the bill in Conmttee
until additional information could be provided.

Senator WI ken sumrari zed that the State does not currently pay a
significant anount for travel service fees; however, the
forthcom ng changes in the travel industry would require the State
to pay significantly nore for services. He continued that the
guestion is which nmethod woul d have the | east fiscal inpact to the
St at e.

M. Jones responded that the conpetitive procurenent nethod would
be “cheaper.”

SFC 02 # 96, Side A 12:33 PM

Senator Wl ken clarified that this would be the nethod established
if the bill were not adopt ed.

M . Jones concurred.

Senat or Lenman suggested that the Division of GCeneral Services
shoul d provide State agencies with a |ist of travel agencies that
woul d honor the State’s established |evel of service rates, and
i ndicate which agencies on that list would provide services at
| ower fees.

M. Jones responded that this is the intention.

Senator Hoffman reiterated that as airline agencies elimnate the
current conmm ssion structure, the |evel of service fees the State
pays woul d increase. He stated that is it appropriate for the State
and people who use travel agencies to absorb these costs as the
travel agents are providing a service. He surmsed the State woul d
benefit fromutilizing a travel agency rather than State enpl oyee
tinme in making those arrangenents. He voi ced support for the bill.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the Bill to be HELD in Conmttee. [This bill

SFC- 02 (21) 05/ 11/ 02



is re-addressed |later in the neeting.]
RECESS TO CALL OF THE CHAIR 12:36 PM/ 8:15 PM
[ Note: The remai nder of Tape SFC 02 #96, side A and all of side B

are bl ank; however, the recording of the neeting continues on Tape
SFC 02 #97 Side A and no portion of the neeting is unrecorded.]

SFC 02 # 97, Side A, 8:15 PM

Vice-Chair Ward call ed the Senate Fi nance neeting back to order.

#hb382

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 382(RES)

"An Act relating to the evaluation and cl eanup of sites where
certain controlled substances may have been manufactured or
stored; and providing for an effective date.™

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRETCHEN GUESS, the sponsor of the bill, inforned
the Conmttee that this | egislation provides assurance that illegal

drug | aboratory sites woul d be thoroughly decontam nated before the
prem se could be re-occupied. She inforned the Commttee that
currently “after a | ab has been busted,” the | aw enforcenent agency
sends a notice to the property owner to clean up the facility, and
the agency takes no further action. She continued that no
gui delines exist to specify the proper way to clean up a site, and
the cleanup activities that occur are usually not adequate. She
stated that this bill would establish proper clean-up guidelines
for testing and decontam nation of sites.

Senat or O son asked whet her an existing problemhas pronpted this
| egi sl ati on.

Representati ve @Quess responded that 50 met hanphet am ne | aboratories
“were busted” in the State in the year 2000, and proper cleanup
provi sions are not established to assure a safe environnent for
future occupants of these locations. She reiterated that this
| egi slation would provide a residential property owner with the
appropriate clean-up guidelines for a site.

SFC- 02 (22) 05/ 11/ 02



Senat or Austerman noved to report House Bill 382 “out of Commttee
wi th individual recommendati ons and acconpanying fiscal notes.”

There being no objections, SCS CS HB 382 (RES) was REPORTED from
Commttee with a previous zero fiscal note, dated February 27,
2002, fromthe Departnent of Public Safety, and a $12,000 fi scal
not e dated February 25, 2002 fromthe Departnent of Environnental
Conservati on

#hb300

SENATE CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 300( STA)
"An Act relating to the procurenent of certain travel

services."
[ This bill was addressed earlier in this nmeeting.]
Representative Hayes clarified that this bill wuld allow the State

to negotiate with travel agencies to establish equitable fees for
travel services rendered to the State. He continued that if this
bill fails to be adopted, a single travel agency in each comunity
woul d be sel ected, through the RFP process, to handle State travel
arrangenents. He opined that the agency awarded the State’s
busi ness woul d be the only agency “still open for business” at the
end of the contract period, and that higher service fees could
result fromthis “nonopoly” situation.

Representative Hayes noted that Commttee nenbers received a |ist
of twenty-two travel agencies [copy not provided] that currently do
not charge a service fee for State travel arrangenents. He
contended that if this bill fails to be adopted, eighteen of those
twenty-two agenci es woul d be forced out of business.

Senator W1 ken asked whether the Conmittee could nandate a
St at ewi de service fee of, for exanple, $15, and all ow each trave
agency to determ ne whether or not to honor that fee. He stated
that identifying a specific fee would provide for an accurate
fiscal note.

Representati ve Hayes responded that Al aska Airlines currently pays
a $20 commssion to travel agencies, and that the State has
determ ned that any |evel below that anpbunt would not provide an
agency with sufficient operational revenue.

SFC- 02 (23) 05/ 11/ 02



Senator WI ken asserted that a pre-determned fixed fee rate would
sinplify the situation and provide for an accurate fiscal note.

Representative Hayes affirnmed that the State supports establishing
a specified fee, but declared that this would continue to result in
an indetermnate fiscal note, as the State is unsure of the nunber
of agencies who woul d adhere to the specified anount.

Senator W/ ken expressed his continuing concern with the fisca
i npact, and noted that the Senate Finance Conmittee Co-Chairs have
not been present during discussions regarding the bill’s fiscal
i mpacts. He cal culated that a $20 transaction fee, based on State
travel patterns, would create an annual fee expense of $600, 000. He
continued that the fiscal note specifies that this amunt woul d be
absorbed within each Departnment’s annual budget; however, he
commented that this could create a hardship for State agencies. He
avowed that while he understands that the travel industry supports
this bill, as a Menber of the Finance Conmittee, he “is charged
wi th | ooking out for the general fund.”

Representati ve Hayes expressed that the indeterm nate fiscal note
reflects the intent that the $600,000 travel fee expenses woul d be
absorbed “in each agency’s current travel budget,” and no increases
in departnent travel expenses would be incurred.

Senator Ward clarified that absorbing $600, 000 in this nmanner woul d
essentially renove that anount from the agencies’ budgets for
actual travel

Representati ve Hayes affirmed that this could be the case; however,
suggested that the resources of a professional travel agency could
provi de the best values in travel options.

Senat or Ward contended that anal ysis supporting this has not been
provided to the Committee.

Senat or Hoffrman surmi sed that |lower fares mght result if Al aska
Airlines utilizes the savings resulting fromthe elimnation of its
travel agency comm ssion fees to offset the service fees charged to
the State by travel agencies.

Senator O son, referencing earlier testinony that the State has
spent $11 mllion on travel, stated that five percent of that
anount woul d be approxinmately half a mllion dollars.

Representati ve Hayes estimated that the fiscal cost to the State to

absorb the travel fee expenses would range between $500, 000 and
$600, 000.

SFC- 02 (24) 05/ 11/ 02



Senator d son voiced that Senator Wl ken's concern that the State
woul d incur a substantial fiscal inpact is valid.

Representative Hayes, responding to Senator Hoffrman’s comment,
stated that departnments would continue to pay the sane anount of
noney for travel; however, the question is whether the noney would
be paid to Alaska Airlines or as a fee to a travel agency.

Senator Wl ken offered a notion to report “HB 300 from Conmittee
wi th individual recomendations and attached i ndeterm nate fisca
note.”

There being no objections, SCS CS HB 300 (STA) was REPORTED from
Conmttee with a previous indetermnate fiscal note, dated February
7, 2002 fromthe Departnment of Adm nistration.

#hb393

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 393(L&C)

"An Act relating to unfair and deceptive trade practices and
to the sale of business opportunities; anending Rules 4 and
73, Alaska Rules of GCivil Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

DOUG LETCH, Staff to Representative Gary Stevens, stated that this
consuner protection bill is designed to protect Al askans from “get-
ri ch-qui ck-schenes” that prey on individuals such as senior
citizens. He stated that by requiring certain conpanies to register
with the State before establishing and operating their business
woul d provide the Departnent of Law with the neans to regul ate and
enforce regul ations regarding trade practices.

Senat or O son asked whether this bill would address such things as
“sweepst akes or pyram d” schenes.

CRYSTAL SM TH, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral,
Department of Law stated that pyram d schenes may or may not be
affected by the bill, and that other consumer protection neasures
address sweepstakes schenes. She explained that this bill is
i ntended to address schenmes wherein people purchase a product or
establish a business to sell a product. She noted that Al askans

SFC- 02 (25) 05/ 11/ 02



seemto be targeted by these enterprises, and that the operators of
t hese busi nesses set up, conduct, and finish their business in a
short time-frame. She stated that many of these businesses woul d be
deterred from setting up practice in the State if their business
were required to register with the State. She insisted that this
bill would provide the State with the ability to charge a busi ness
wth a registration violation if business were conducted w thout
first registering, and she noted that this violation would be
faster to i nplenent than proceedi ngs based on a “scamviolation.”

Senator Austerman offered a notion to nove “HB 393 out of Conmmttee
wi th individual recomendations and acconpanying indeterm nate
fiscal note.”

There being no objections, SCS CS HB 393 (L&) was REPORTED from
Conmittee with an indeterm nate fiscal note dated February 21, 2002
fromthe Departnment of Law.

#hb239

SENATE CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 239( HES)
"An Act establishing a pilot programfor a regional |earning
center."

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

DR.  LARRY LABOLLE, Staff to Representative Richard Foster,
testified to a letter to the Commttee dated May 10, 2002 co-si gned
by Dr. John A Davis, Superintendent, Bering Strait School D strict
and Dr. Stan Lujan, Superintendent, None City Schools [copy on
file] which identifies various project funding sources such as
training grants through Kawerak, Inc, a consortium of regiona
social services agencies. He noted that this letter does not
provide a financial plan although other letters supporting this
proj ect have been received; including one fromthe Gty of None
[ copy not provided] that assures the Gty s support of the project
and specifies that Kawerak, Inc. would comrit up to $2, 300,000 in
State and federal training noney to the project, and another letter
addressed to the superintendents of the Bering Strait School
District and Nonme City Schools District from Kawerak, Inc. [copy
not provided] that specifies that $2,300,000 in grant funding is
avai lable to support this program He continued that the Norton
Sound Devel opnment Corporation has additionally supplied a letter
[ copy not provided] citing their support of the program

SFC- 02 (26) 05/ 11/ 02



Dr. LaBolle stressed the inportance for project planning;, however
he pointed out “nobody is able to put together a financial plan
until they have sonme idea of what the program |ooks like.” He
continued that in order to “shape the program” it would be
necessary for the Bering Straits School and None School Districts
to work with other “mgjor players,” such as the Northwest Canpus
and Kawerak, Inc. “to neet and devel op a consensus” as to how t he
program woul d oper at e.

Senator Wl ken attested that a business plan has been requested
nunmerous tines, and the fact that none of the recent correspondence
addressed the issue “shocked” him He reviewed the known el enents
of the project including the utilization of an existing building
for which operational costs are available, and the identification
of the nunber of students and correspondi ng staffing requirenents.
He surm sed that the affected school districts’ superintendents
each manage |arge school district budgets and should be able to
devel op a business plan for this project. He stated that in return
for the State, acting as “the project banker” by providing funding
for the project, the districts should be able to provide a project
busi ness plan. He voiced two suggestions: one; “stop this bill
right here” until a business plan is presented; or two; “zero out
the fiscal note” which would allow the project to begin and devel op
a funding needs plan as it progresses.

Senator W/ ken opined that this bill should not be considered until
a vi abl e business plan is presented.

JOHN HANDELAND, Enpl oyee, and former Mayor, City of None, inforned
the Commttee that the City of Nonme has been exploring nethods to
utilize the existing Nome Beltz School conplex and to provide an
i nnovati on educati onal experience for both rural and urban students
in the Gty of Nome and the Bering Straits School Districts. He
stated that this project is the result of that endeavor. He
informed the Conmttee that the City of None has approached Al aska
US Senator Ted Stevens, who asked the Gty to identify |ocal
support for the project.

M . Handel and confirmed that the City of None, Kawarek, Inc, and
the Bering Straits and None School Districts are commtted to
supporting this project. He further expressed that the Gty of None
has responsibly and continually denonstrated its support of
education, and that there is w despread support in the region to
support this bill as presented.

M. Handel and avowed that the approval of the acconpanyi ng $150, 000
Department Education and Early Developnent fiscal note would

SFC- 02 (27) 05/ 11/ 02



provide the project with the required State support necessary to
further the opportunity to receive federal and other funding
support.

Senator G een asked why the two school districts could not provide
the required support for this project, without the need for this
| egi sl ati on.

Dr. LaBolle explained that US Senator Stevens has specifically
requested a denonstration of support for this project from the
State. He continued that as the concept of the project expanded,
t he Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment becane invol ved
in the process of coordinating the two affected school districts.

Senator Green questioned whether a letter of recomendation from
the Departnent of Education and Early Developnent would be
sufficient to denonstrate the State’s support. She voiced that this
appears to be a request for noney, and that every school district
would |ike to have a conparable anmpbunt of noney to further the
devel opnent of innovation teaching prograns. She stated that she is
very concerned about the long-terminpact of this |egislation.

Senator W1l ken asked the testifier whether a five-year business
pl an coul d be devel oped.

M. Handel and responded that a business plan should be and coul d be
devel oped, and he nentioned that US Senator Stevens has also
requested a business plan to be developed by the two school
districts. He contended that perhaps a business plan should have
been established first; however, the enphasis was placed on
cenenting the necessary support and cooperation for the project
fromthe various regional entities.

M . Handel and responded to Senator G een’s comment about providing
i nnovati ve education funding to all districts, by qualifying that
the Cty of Nome School District, unlike other State school
districts, has an existing, but unused, teaching facility that
woul d provide the required infrastructure for this project.

Senator A son reiterated that having an existing facility does make
this project unique.

Senator O son offered a notion to nove from Commttee, “House Bil
239 with individual recomendations and acconpanying fiscal note.”

Senat or W1 ken objected and asked that consideration be given to
zero out the acconpanying fiscal note.

SFC- 02 (28) 05/ 11/ 02



Vice Chair Ward inquired whether Senator WIlken would offer an
anendnent to that effect.

Senator Wl ken stated that if the fiscal note were zeroed out he
coul d support the legislation; however, he did not offer a formal
anendnent .

A roll call was taken on the notion to report the bill from
Conmittee.

IN FAVOR: Senator Hoffrman, Senator d son, Senator Ward, Senator
Aust er man

OPPCSED: Senator Green, Senator W/ ken

ABSENT: Co- Chair Donl ey, Co-Chair Kelly, Senator Leman

The noti on PASSED( 4- 2- 3)

SCS CS HB 239(HES) was REPORTED from Conmmttee with a previous

$150, 000 fiscal note, dated April 16, 2002 fromthe Departnent of
Educati on and Early Devel opnent.

RECESSED TO THE CALL OF THE CHAIR 8:40 PM/ 9:11 PM
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 09:11 PM

SFC- 02 (29) 05/ 11/ 02



